
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Christeen Abee 
Service: Committee Services 
Direct line: 01784 444229 
E-mail: c.abee@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 25 March 2022 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee  
 
 

Date: 

 

Monday, 4 April 2022 

Time: 

 

10.00 am 

Place: 

 

Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18 
1XB 

 
To the members of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
R.W. Sider BEM (Chairman) 
 

C.L. Barratt 
 

S.M. Doran 
 

 
Note: In the event of one of the aforementioned Licensing Committee Members being 
unable to attend or serve on this Sub-Committee another Member of the Licensing 
Committee will be called to serve in their place.  
 
Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the 
last Committee meeting.  
 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from members in accordance with 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

2.   To consider an application for review of the Premises Licence at 
Sunbury Food and Wine, 13 The Parade, Staines Road West, 
Sunbury-on-Thames TW16 7AB 

3 - 180 

 The Report of the Deputy Chief Executive is attached. 
 
A procedure note which explains what happens at a Licensing Sub-
Committee, follows.  
 

 

 



Licensing Act 2003 
 

Hearing procedure for Licensing Sub-Committee –  
Premises Licence Review 

 
 

 Introductions  

1.  The Chairman will open the meeting, introduce members of the Sub-Committee 
and officers present and explain the nature of the decision to be taken and the 
procedure to be followed. 

2.  All persons present to introduce themselves to the Sub-Committee. 

*NOTE* the Applicant for a review is either a Responsible Authority or an Other 
Person. The Premises Licence Holder is a “respondent”. 

 Summary of Application and Representations 

3.  The Council’s Licensing Manager will outline the application, any relevant 
representations and highlight any points relevant to the Licensing Authority’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy and statutory guidance. OR summarise the 
salient points of the report on the agenda. 

4.  The Applicant for the review or their representative may ask relevant questions 
of the Council’s solicitor/Licensing Manager. 

5.  The Responsible Authorities may ask relevant questions of the Council’s 
Licensing Manager if necessary. 

6.  Any Other Persons who have submitted representations about the application 
may ask relevant questions of the Council’s Licensing Manager if necessary. 

7.  The Premises Licence Holder may ask the Licensing Manager QUESTIONS 
arising from what he/she has said or relating to the application. (The Applicant 
will have the opportunity to state his/her case later). 

8.  The members of the Sub-Committee may ask relevant questions of the 
Council’s Licensing Manager. 

9.  The Council’s Licensing Manager may respond to any new issues raised. 

 The Applicant’s Case 

10.  The Responsible Authorities or Other Persons applying for the review presents 
their case (may include evidence of witnesses if appropriate). 

11.  The Responsible Authorities who have submitted representations about the 
application may ask any relevant questions of the applicant for the review if 
necessary. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



12.  Any Other Persons who have submitted representations about the application 
may ask any relevant questions of the applicant for the review if necessary. 

13.  The Premises Licence Holder asks questions of the Applicant for the review if 
necessary. 

14.  The members of the Sub-Committee may ask relevant questions of the 
Applicant for the review. 

15.  The Applicant for Review may respond to any new issues raised. 

 The Responsible Authorities case 

16.  The Responsible Authorities who have submitted representations about the 
application will present their case (may include evidence of witnesses if 
appropriate). 

17.  The Applicant for the review or their representative may ask relevant questions 
of the Responsible Authorities. 

18.  Any Other Persons who have submitted representations about the application 
may ask relevant questions of the Responsible Authorities. 

19.  The Premises Licence Holder may ask relevant questions of the Responsible 
Authorities who have submitted representations about the application. 

20.  The members of the Sub-Committee may ask relevant questions of the 
Responsible Authorities. 

21.  The Responsible Authorities may respond to any new issues raised. 

 The Other Persons Case 

22.  Any Other Persons who have submitted representations about the application 
will present their case (may include evidence of witnesses if appropriate). 

23.  The Applicant for Review or their representative may ask relevant questions of 
the Other Persons. 

24.  The Responsible Authorities who have submitted representations about the 
application may ask relevant questions of the Other Persons who have 
submitted representations about the application. 

25.  The Premises Licence Holder may ask relevant questions of the Other Persons 
who have submitted representations about the application. 

26.  The members of the Sub-Committee may ask relevant questions of the Other 
Persons who have submitted representations about the application. 

27.  The Other Persons may respond to any new issues raised. 

Page 4



 The Premises Licence Holder Case 

28.  The Premises Licence Holder will present their case (may include evidence of 
witnesses if appropriate). 

29.  The Applicant for the review or their representative may ask any relevant 
questions of the Premises Licence Holder. 

30.  The Responsible Authorities who have submitted representations about the 
application may ask relevant questions of the Premises Licence Holder. 

31.  Any Other Persons who have submitted representations about the application 
may ask relevant questions of the Premises Licence Holder. 

32.  The members of the Sub-Committee may ask relevant questions of the 
Premises Licence Holder. 

33.  The Premises Licence Holder may respond to any new issues raised. 

 Summing Up 

34.  The Chairman will invite the Licensing Enforcement Officer to clarify any 
technical points. 

35.  The Chairman will invite any Other Persons who have submitted 
representations about the application to briefly summarise their case if they so 
wish. 

36.  The Chairman will invite any Responsible Authorities who have submitted 
representations about the application to briefly summarise their case if they so 
wish. 

37.  The Chairman will invite the Applicant for the review to briefly summarise their 
case if they so wish. 

38.  The Chairman will invite the Premises Licence Holder to briefly summarise their 
case if they so wish. 

39.  The Chairman will then ask all parties if they are satisfied they have said all 
they wish to. 

(NOTE – The Premises Licence Holder to have the last word.) 

 

 Decision 

40.  The members of the Sub-Committee will retire to reach a decision in private, 
accompanied by the Council’s legal officer and Committee Manager. 

41.  Members of the Sub-Committee return. The Chairman will announce the 
decision of the Sub-Committee with reasons (summary or full) for the decision. 

Page 5



42.  Meeting closed. 

43.  The Council’s legal officer will remain in the room to assist all parties should 
they require clarification of the decision and/or next steps. 

 
GUIDANCE NOTES 
 
*The Licensing Authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to 
address the Sub-Committee, but request that all parties keep points pertinent and the 
discussion moving in the interests of cost and efficiency. However, the overriding principle 
for the Licensing Authority will be to ensure that all parties receive a fair hearing. 
 

(a) Cross examination of parties is at the discretion of the Sub-Committee. 
 

(b) When the Premises Licence Holder questions the Licensing Manager or any other 
party he/she should not go into the merits of his/her case as he/she will have an 
opportunity to present it at Stage 28. He/she should only ask questions relating to 
what the Licensing Manager or other person has said or relating to the application as 
a whole. 
 

(c) The Applicant or any other party may be represented by a friend or a professional 
person to speak on his/her behalf who will follow the same procedure as described 
above and who may call the Applicant as a witness. 
 

(d) The order or proceedings may be varied by the Chairman if he/she thinks that it is 
necessary to do so in the interests of affording the Applicant a fair hearing or in order 
to take into account all relevant considerations. 
 

(e) If, after the Sub-Committee has withdrawn to make their decision, they decide that 
they need to ask a question of any of the parties involved in the proceedings or to 
clarify any matter then they shall do so in the presence of all parties. 
 

(f) Members of the Sub-Committee must be present throughout the hearing and must 
not communicate with any party involved in the proceedings except for when they 
are in the presence of all of the parties and the remainder of the Sub-Committee. 

Page 6



Licensing Sub-Committee 

04/04/2022 

 

 
 

Subject Application for a review of the Premises Licence at Sunbury Food and 
Wine  

Purpose  For determination  

Report of Deputy Chief Executive Ward Sunbury Common 

Contact Lucy Catlyn (Principal Licensing Officer) (01784 444295) 

 

Description and 
Location 

A Newsagent in a local shopping parade with residential flats above it. 

On 14th February 2022, Trading Standards, a Responsible Authority 
under the Licensing Act 2003 applied to the Licensing Authority to review 
the premises licence. 

Plan at Appendix A 

The Application 

 

 

 

The application is to review the Premises Licence under the Licensing 
Objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of 
children from harm.  The application was made by Amanda Poole, 
Assistant Head of Trading Standards.  The Applicant for Review requests 
the revocation of the Premises Licence. 

The current licence is attached at Appendix B and the current plan is 
attached at Appendix C. The review application is attached at Appendix 
D. 

Representations Relevant representations in support of the review have been received 
from Surrey Police a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Letters of representation are attached at Appendix E. 

Options 

 

 

1. Having had regard to the representations, the Sub-Committee must 
decide on one or more of the following options as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 
 

 Modify the conditions  

 Exclude a licensable activity  

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor  

 Suspend the licence for up to 3 months  

 Revoke the licence  

Page 7



 
 

 No action required 
and for this purpose, the conditions of the Premises Licence are modified 
if any of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 

 
 

 

1. Background 

1.1 The licence holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor is Mandeep 
Singh Soni.  

1.2 Sunbury food and wine was first granted a premises licence 07 March 2006. 
An application to transfer the licence and change the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) was made on 10 November 2010 to Mr Mandeep Singh 
Soni.   

1.3 The current premises licence in respect of Sunbury Food and Wine allows the 
sale by retail of alcohol on weekdays 09.00 to 22.00 and on Sundays 10.00 to 
22.00 for the consumption off the premises. The opening hours of the 
premises are the same. 

2. Review Application  

2.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to consider and determine an application 
submitted on 14 February 2022 from Trading Standards for the review of a 
Premise Licence for Sunbury Food and Wine held by Mr Mandeep Singh 
Soni.  The application for the review of the Premises Licence is attached is at 
Appendix D.  

2.2 The Application for the Review of the Premise Licence is made on the of 
prevention of crime and disorder and protection of children from harm. 

 

2.3 The Applicant for a Review is required to forward copies of the application to 
the Responsible Authorities with a view to any of these Responsible 
Authorities making a supporting representation if deemed appropriate. 

2.4 Trading Standards served the Application for Review on the Premises 
Licence Holder in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.  

2.5 The Notice of Review was displayed at the licensed premises between 15th 
February 2022 and 14th March 2022 and in the reception area of the Council 
Offices and the notice board outside the Civic offices as well as the Council’s 
website.  Several checks have been made by Licensing Officers at the 
premises to ensure the required notice is on display at all times. 

 

2.6 Chronology of grounds given for review 

On the 19 September 2020 Trading Standards and Surrey police carried out a 
test purchasing operation.  

 Two test purchasers, both under the age of 18 years, were sold a box 
of NOS cannisters and balloons and charged £21.99. 

 A search and behind the counter revealed various counterfeit tobacco 
and alcohol which was seized.  

Page 8



 
 

 On the 23 September 2020 Mr Soni voluntarily attended interview.  

 On the 19 January 2022 Mr Soni was sentenced, following pleading 
guilty to six counts including one count under the Psychoactive 
Substances Act 2016, two counts under the Trademarks Act 1994, two 
counts under the Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 and 
one count under the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products 
Regulations 2015.   

 The Magistrates considered the offence under the Psychoactive 
Substances Act to be the most serious and looked at the offending in 
its totality when considering sentence. Mr Soni was sentenced as 
follows: Individual Community order for 12 months to complete a period 
of unpaid work for 160 hours — this covers all the counts. Victim 
surcharge £95. And also faced mirror charges for his company, GIM 
Enterprises Limited to which all guilty pleas were also entered. 
Company — Fine -£100 (reduced because of limited operating profit of 
the company) I Victim surcharge £34. 

 

3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 

  
4. Representations 

4.1 i) Representations from Responsible Authorities 

A Relevant representation in support of the review has been received from 
Surrey Police and is attached at Appendix E.  The representation comprises 
an expert witness statement from Emma Gower. 

No further representations have been received from any other Responsible 
Authorities or Other Persons.  

 

5. Licensing Policy 

5.1 The following sections of the Council’s Licensing Policy are relevant.  These 
are attached at Appendix F. 

 3.0 Licensing Objectives and Licensable Activities 

 8.0 Conditions 

 9.0 Administration and Decision Making  

 19.0 The Review Process 

 25.0 Crime and Disorder & 25.1 Reviews  

 25.8 Protection of Children from Harm, 25.8.3 Reviews in connection 
with protection of children from harm 

 

6. National Guidance 

6.1 The relevant section from the National Guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on determination of a 
Review is attached at Appendix G. 

 

Page 9



 
 

7. Legal Comments 

7.1 Following receipt of a review application the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing 
to consider it and any relevant representations. At the hearing, the Sub-committee 
must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of 
the steps following steps (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives: 

 
• modify the conditions of the licence. 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence. 
• remove the designated premises supervisor.  
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; and/or 
• revoke the licence 

 
and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them 
are altered or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 
7.2 The Sub-Committee must also have regard to Spelthorne Borough Council’s 

Statement of Licensing and the Secretary of State's Guidance issued under the 
Licensing Act 2003 when deciding what action, if any, to instigate. The terms of the 
Statement of Licensing Policy and Guidance are highly persuasive but are not binding 
on the Licensing Sub- Committee. The Sub-Committee may depart from the guidance 
contained in the Statement of Licensing Policy and or Guidance if it considers there 
are clear and justifiable reasons to do so. Full reasons must be given if this is the case. 

 
7.3  The Sub-Committee can only consider matters within the application or that have been 

raised through relevant representations from and each application will be decided on 
a case-to-case basis.  

   
7.4  The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review 

does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives. In 
deciding what remedial action, if any, it should take the Sub-Committee must direct its 
mind to the causes or concerns which the application and representations identify. The 
remedial action should generally be directed at these causes or concerns and should 
always ensure that any response is necessary and proportionate.  

 
7.5  Members are referred to the Secretary of State's Guidance on conditions, specifically 

paragraph 1.16 and chapter 10 which state that licensing conditions should be practical 
and enforceable, tailored to the size, type, location and characteristics and activities 
taking place at the premises. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case 
basis and standardised conditions which ignore these individual aspects should be 
avoided. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a current statutory 
requirement. Licensing Authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they 
impose are only those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
7.6 The Sub-Committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when 

making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough. 
 
 
7.7  Where the Sub-Committee determines an application for review it must provide written 

notice and reasons for its decision. 
 

7.8 The licence holder, Applicant for Review or any party that made relevant 
representations have the right to appeal the decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to the Magistrates’ Court within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which 
the applicant was notified in writing by the Licensing Authority of its decision. 

Page 10



 
 

 

 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Location Plan 
 
Appendix B – Current Licence 
 
Appendix C – Current Plan 
 
Appendix D – Review Application with statements and exhibits 
 
Appendix E – Representations from responsible authorities 
 
Appendix F – Extracts from Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
Appendix G – Extract from National Guidance on Reviews 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Location Plan 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

1 
 

SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines, TW18 1XB. 

 
PREMISES LICENCE 

 
 

 

Premises licence number 
06/00060/LAPRE 

Issue Date 07 March 2006 

Latest Revision Date 10 November 2010  

 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 
Sunbury Food & Wine 
13 The Parade 
Staines Road West 
 

Post town Sunbury Post code TW16 7AB 

Telephone number 01932 258405 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
 
 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
a. On weekdays 09.00 to 22.00 
b. On Sundays   10.00 to 22.00 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
 
a. On weekdays 09.00 to 22.00 
b. On Sundays   10.00 to 22.00 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies 
 
For consumption off the premises 
 

 

BOROUGH COUNCILBOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 15



Appendix B 
 

2 
 

Part 2  
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence 
 
Mandeep Singh Soni 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
Mandeep Singh Soni 

 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed_____________________________________ 
 

Head of Environmental Health & Building Control Services 
 
 
Dated 29 November 2010 

Page 16



Appendix B 
 

3 
 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
 
Mandatory Condition: where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises licence- 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, 

or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 

personal licence is suspended 
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 
 
 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification 
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  
 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age 
(or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 
 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

 An accredited Proof of Age Schemes to be in place.  

 CCTV to be installed and working to the satisfaction of the Police and Licensing Authority. 

 No consumption of alcohol on the premises to be allowed. 

 Limited number of customers to be allowed in shop at any one time. 
 
 
Public Safety 
 

 Fire Exit signs to be on display, fire extinguishers and fire alarm to be maintained and available 
for instant use on the premises. 

 Fire Exits are not to be obstructed in any way. 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 Any unnecessary noise from inside the premises to be prevented. 

 Litter to be controlled outside the premises. 
 
 
The Protection of Children from Harm 
 

 An accredited Proof of Age scheme to be in place. 
 
 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None 
 
 
Annex 4 – Plans 
 

Page 17



Appendix B 
 

4 
 

 

Page 18



Appendix C 
 

1 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL
$PELTHORNE

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises BOROUGH COUNCIL

certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Amanda Poole
(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51! apply for the
review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part I below (delete as applicable)

Part I — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
Sunbury Food and Wine
13 The Parade
Staines Road West

Post town Sunbury Post code (if known) TW16 7AB

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)
Mandeep Singh Soni

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known
One

Part 2 - Applicant details
lam

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

C) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

Page 21



2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A)
below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick
Mr Mrs Miss Ms L1 Other title

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
lam 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

2

Page 22



(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address
Amanda Poole
Assistant Head of Trading Stanadards
Buckinghamshire and Surrey Trading Standards Service
Walton Street Offices
Aylesbury
Bucking ham shire
HP20 1UP

Telephone number (if any)
07984458679

E-mail address (optional)
amanda.poole@surreycc.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety LI
3) the prevention of public nuisance LI
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)
NZ brand cigarettes, which are not legitimately available for sale in the UK, were
found behind the till area in the premises. The cigarettes were not presented in
packaging required by UK law and no indication of that duty had been paid was

present on the packaging. This type of cigarette are commonly smuggled. Benson
and Hedges cigarettes that were concealed in boxes purporting to contain an

inflatable boxing tower were confirmed to be counterfiet by the brand owner upon
examination. These items are also likely to have been smuggled in the boxes used

for concealment and have no duty paid. The business owner has confirmed that the
cigarettes in question were in his posession for sale. Possession of smuggled goods

on licensed premises is in contravention of the Licensing Act 2003, Section 144-
Keeping of Smuggled goods on premises.

Businesses selling smuggled products at prices lower than those that can be offered
by legitimate businesses disadvatanges legitimate business practice.

Cannisters containing Nitrous Oxide together with balloons were sold two test
purchasers, both 17 years of age, for Psychoactive purposes. The action of the shop

keeper indicates a disregard for the welfare of young customers.

It is requested that a revocation of the premises licence from Mandeep Singh Soni be
considerd in this instance

3

Page 23



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

On the 19th September 2020, police carried out a test purchasing operation
accompanied by Trading Standards Officers with the intention of ascertaining

whether identified premises in the Sunbury area would sell Nitrous Oxide (NOS). As
part of this exercise, two test purchases, both under the age of 18 years, visited the

premises of Sunbury Food and Wine and was sold a box of NOS cannisters and
balloons and charged £21 .99.

The police and Trading Standards Officers then entered the shop premises and
conducted a search and behind the counter various counterfeit tobacco and alcohol

was found and seized:

17 boxes of Mosa brand NOS canisters
24 loose canisters

A large quantity of rubber balloons
NOS canister openers

80 packets of 20 Benson and Hedges cigarettes concealed in inflatable
Boxing Tower’ boxes.

29 packets of 20 NZ Black brand cigarettes.
Plus 5 packets of Benson and Hedges cigarettes also believed to be counterfeit all

together in a yellow bag which was suspended next to the serving area at the
counter.

• Twenty-one 35cl bottles of Glen’s vodka believed to be counterfeit.

On the 23rd September 2020 Mr Soni voluntarily attended interview where he was
legally represented. Mr Soni said that he kept the NOS under the counter and not on
display as kids try to steal it. He did not question the test purchaser’s intended use of
the NOS as he thought they were making a cake or having a party. Mr Soni could not
account for why he thought kids would try to steal NOS and also alleges that he was

not aware that the sale of this substance is illegal if it’s intended use is for its
psychoactive effects.

In relation to the illicit tobacco and the vodka, Mr Soni says that different suppliers
came to his shop and offered him the cigarettes and vodka for a cheap price. He

asked the supplier if they were genuine and was told they were.

On the 19th January 2022 at High Wycombe Magistrates Court Mr Soni was
sentenced, following pleading guilty to six counts including one count under the

Psychoactive Substances Act 2016, two counts under the Trade Marks Act 1994, two
counts under the Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 and one count

under the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015.

The Magistrates considered the offence under the Psychoactive Substances Act to
be the most serious and looked at the offending in it’s totality when considering

sentence. They took into account his early guilty plea and the fact that Mr Soni had
no previous convictions. With this in mind he was sentenced as follows:

Individual - Community order for 12 months to complete a period of unpaid work for
160 hours — this covers all the counts. Victim surcharge £95.

Mr Soni also faced mirror charges for his company, GIM Enterprises Limited to which
all guilty pleas were also entered.

Company — Fine -£100 (reduced because of limited operating profit of the company)
I Victim surcharge £34

4

Page 24



Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before

If yes please state the date of that application
Day Month Year

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

5
Page 25



Please tick yes 
• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible � 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements � 
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity. 

�;9n�tur�   ........ . 
����- .... \. � .. \ .. Q.� .\ �io ·2.� ................................................................ . 
Capacity 

Sup J (� 1.��J\� ·{\ h>J2-. 
�,· � \ 

"' '. """'!""'j 
" " 

. 
� 

. 
_ 

.
. " " " " .

......... ......... .. \i . ... , .......... < uY .. 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 

Post town 

I
Post Code 

Telephone number (if any) 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional) 

Notes for Guidance 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems

which are included in the grounds for review if available.
3. The application form must be signed.
4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf

provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this

application.

6 
Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Appendix F  

 

1 

 

Spelthorne Licensing Policy  
 
3.0 LICENSING OBJECTIVES AND LICENSABLE ACTIVES  
Section 4 of the Licensing Act requires the Licensing Authority to carry out its 
licensing functions with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives, which are:  

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

 Public Safety  

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance  

 The Protection of Children from Harm  
Decision making will be based on promoting these licensing objectives.  
Decision makers will also have regard to this policy document and any guidance 
issued from time to time by the Secretary of State.  
 
The policy relates to all “licensable activities” as defined by the act, namely:- 

  Retail sale of alcohol (for the avoidance of confusion, the definition of alcohol was 
amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2017 to include alcohol “in any state”. This is 
to make it clear that products such as powdered and vaporised alcohol fall within the 
definition provided by the 2003 Act.)  

 Supply of alcohol to club members  

 Provision of ‘regulated entertainment’ (listed below) – to the public, to club 
members or with a view to profit 

o A performance of a play 
o An exhibition of a film 

o An indoor sporting event 
o Boxing or wrestling entertainment 7 

o A performance of live music (except within limits defined by The Live Music Act 
2012) 

o Any playing of recorded music 
o A performance of dance 

o Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within the performance of live 
music, the playing of recorded music and the performance of dance 

 The supply of hot food and/or drink from any premises between 11pm and 5am 
(known as Late Night Refreshment). Note: The requirement to license “entertainment 
facilities” was removed in October 2012. 
 
8.0 CONDITIONS -  The authority wishes to encourage high quality, well managed 
premises. The operating schedule should describe how these high management 
standards will be achieved. In particular applicants will be expected to demonstrate:  

 knowledge of best practice;  

 that they understand the legal requirements of operating a licensed business; and  

 a knowledge and understanding of the licensing objectives, relevant parts of the 
licensing policy, and their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
Measures offered by applicants on their operating schedule will normally become 
licence conditions. They therefore must be enforceable and the meaning must be 
clear and unambiguous. The authority may alter the wording of a condition to achieve 
this. The context or meaning of the condition will not be changed.  
 
The Licensing Authority may only attach conditions to a premises licence where 
"relevant representations" have been received.   Relevant 12 representations are 
those that relate to the licensing objectives, are about the particular application and 
relate to the particular premises.    
 

Page 159



Appendix F  

 

2 

 

Conditions will only be attached to a licence where they are appropriate for the 
promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. They will focus on matters that 
are within the control of individual licensees and that are relevant to the type of 
premises and licensable activities that take place. When considering conditions, the 
Licensing Authority will take into account the direct impact of the activities taking 
place at licensed premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned. Conditions that duplicate provisions in other 
legislation would not normally be added to licences. 
 
9.0 ADMINISTRATION AND DECISION MAKING:   
This Policy shall be decided upon by the full Council. The Licensing Committee will 
consist of a maximum of 15 Members of the Council. If there are relevant 
representations against an application, the Licensing Authority will try to resolve 
issues between applicants and those making representations to try to reach 
agreement so that a hearing is not necessary.  
 
Members of the public who wish to submit a representation will be made aware that 
their personal details will be made available to the applicant, unless they clearly state 
that they wish for them to be redacted. Anonymous representations however, will not 
be accepted by the Licensing Authority.  
 
Where relevant representations have been made and not subsequently withdrawn, 
applications will be heard by a sub-committee of three members drawn from the 
Licensing Committee.  
 
The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a 
means of early intervention; the Council’s licensing department may do so where 
considered appropriate without having to wait for representations from other 
responsible authorities. In cases where Spelthorne’s licensing department is also 
acting as a responsible authority and has submitted a representation against or in 
support of an application being determined by a sub-committee, it is important to 
achieve a separation of responsibilities within the authority - to ensure procedural 
fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest.  
 
13 A separation will be achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of 
licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority. 
The officer advising the sub-committee (i.e. the authority acting in its capacity as the 
licensing authority) will be a different person from the officer who is acting for the 
responsible authority.  
 
Guidance issued by the Home Office conveys that it should be considered 
reasonable for licensing authorities to expect other responsible authorities will 
intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 
responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where 
the representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is 
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to 
make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each 
responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act 
independently without waiting for representations from any other responsible 
authority. 
 
19.0 THE REVIEW PROCESS  
Residents have the power to apply for a licence to be called in for review if the 
premises are causing problems. There is no requirement to live or work in the 
vicinity. Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a 

Page 160



Appendix F  

 

3 

 

premises licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the Council’s licensing 
department may apply for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at 
premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations from other 
persons. However, it is not expected that the 18 Council will act as a responsible 
authority in applying for reviews on behalf of other persons or where the basis for 
intervention falls within the remit of another responsible authority.  
 
A review can be requested at any time, however government guidance recommends 
that not more than one review in 12 months should be allowed on similar grounds 
unless there are compelling circumstances. Review applications cannot be made 
anonymously.  
 
The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in 
respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 
6 April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office 
Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s 
behalf. When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible 
authority it will do so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective because it is concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration 
offences more broadly. The Council’s licensing department will work closely with 
officers from Immigration Enforcement to enable them to carry out their functions as 
effectively as possible.  
 
Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for 
the review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the 
Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance 
order under section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant 
time periods run concurrently and are as follows: 

 upon receipt of a notice that a magistrates’ court has made a closure order, it has 
28 days to determine the licence review – the determination must be made before 
the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is received;  

 the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after 
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;  

 notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first 
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice 
and the start of the hearing).  
 
A review application needs to be in writing on the statutory form. There will need to 
be clear and factual evidence to support the application and this should show that 
incidents are not isolated and that there is a direct link with the premises. Grounds for 
review must also be based on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
25.0 CRIME AND DISORDER 
Staines Town Centre is no longer considered a hotspot for alcohol-related crime and 
disorder. However it has the strongest night-time economy in the Borough with a 
mixture of restaurants, bars, pubs, late night takeaways and a cinema.  
 
What applicants include on their operating schedules will depend on the type of 
premises, the location, and the proposed activities.  
 
Premises that are mainly concerned with the sale of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises (pubs, bars, proprietary clubs) will need to address the risks to crime and 
disorder with measures in their operating schedules to: 

 Prevent disorder on the premises  

Page 161



Appendix F  

 

4 

 

 Prevent drunkenness  

 Prevent under age sales of alcohol  

 Ensure customers enter and leave in an orderly manner  

 Exclude illegal drugs  

 Exclude offensive weapons  
Examples include:-  

 Active membership of pubwatch schemes  

 Use of licensed door supervisors  

 Physical security features e.g. use of shatterproof drinking glasses  

 Information on amount of seating to be provided  

 Training given to staff in crime prevention measures  

 Use of town centre radios (Staines Town Centre) to enable licensed premises to 
communicate to each other and police  

 Search procedures  

 Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs  

 Details of CCTV video cameras  
 
This list is not exhaustive and will not suit all applications. Applicants should seek 
advice from Surrey Police before preparing their operating schedules in relation to 
the prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
It is recognised that late night takeaways can be the focus of anti-social behaviour, 
and in Staines Town Centre the use of CCTV, licensed door supervisors at peak 
times, and signing up to the town centre radio may be considered necessary to 
address this.  
 
Shops and off licences applying to sell alcohol will need to address the risks to crime 
and disorder with measures in their operating schedules.  
Examples include:-  

 That there will be regular staff training (whether or not staff are paid) in relation to 
sale of alcohol to under age people and that training records shall be kept.  

 All refusals to be recorded. in a refusals book. Refusals books shall consist of a 
bound book with consecutively numbered pages, and shall be held at the premises 
and available for inspection on demand at all times by the responsible authorities. 
Records shall include the reason for the refused sale, whether because the customer 
looked under 25 and could not provide ID, or the customer appeared to be 
intoxicated, or whether the sales assistant suspected that the sales may be made on 
behalf of someone who may be underage or intoxicated (known as proxy sales).  

 Use of Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS) system to remind staff via a suitable visual 
prompt or audible warning. Alternatively stickers can be used over certain products to 
remind cashiers to check the customer’s age.  

 That there is CCTV coverage of the licensed premises and the immediate vicinity 
outside in accordance with Surrey Police’s Operational Guidelines in the use of 
CCTV in licensed shops.  

 That a personal licence holder may be required to be on duty at high risk times 
such as outside school hours and during the evenings, for example where a business 
has been prosecuted for underage sales and/or is a source of youth disorder.  

 That staff shall not sell alcohol to any person they have reason to suspect may be 
buying the alcohol for a child and that there shall be signage to warn adults that it is 
an offence to buy alcohol on behalf of a child. This is known as “proxy sales”. Where 
there is evidence of such sales taking place, consideration should be given to 
ensuring CCTV coverage outside the shop.  

Page 162



Appendix F  

 

5 

 

 In areas with problems with alcohol related youth crime and disorder, that licence 
holders shall participate in “Bottlewatch” schemes, if requested to do so by 
responsible authorities.  

 In areas where there is an Offwatch scheme, that licence holders sign up to such a 
scheme.  
 
This list is not exhaustive and applicants should seek advice from Surrey Trading 
Standards or Surrey Police before preparing their operating schedules 
 
25.1 REVIEWS A review of the licence may be sought by Responsible Authorities or 
any other person, where:  

 A serious crime has occurred at, or can be linked to a particular premises  

 There have been prosecutions or penalty notices served for underage sales  

 There have been incidents which raise concerns that the premises are not being 
properly managed  

 There have been breaches of the terms or conditions of the licence  

 There have been repeated complaints from the public. 
 
25.8 PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM  
 
The Council is committed to the safeguarding of children and vulnerable persons. 
The Licensing Act 2003 places legal responsibilities on holders of Premises Licences 
and Club Premises Certificates, and those who work in licensed premises to ensure 
that children are protected from harm at all times when on licensed premises.  
 
In exercising the Council’s powers under Section 182 of the Act to designate a body 
which is competent to advise the Council about the protection of children from harm, 
the following principles have been applied:  

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area; and  

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather 
than any particular vested interest group etc.  
Having regard to the above principles and the guidance issued by the Home Office, 
the Council designates the Surrey County Council Children’s Service for this 
purpose. 
 
There are a great variety of premises for which licences may be sought. These will 
include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, cafes, take-aways, community halls 
and schools, all of which will have different risks to children. The general relaxation 
that gives children greater access to licensed premises is a positive step, which aims 
to promote more family friendly premises. However the risk of harm to children is 
equal in importance to the other licensing objectives and applicants must include in 
their operating schedules the steps they propose to take to prevent moral, physical, 
or psychological harm to children.  
 
When considering applications for new licences and variations to existing licences, 
the Council will seek to be assured that applicants have considered safeguarding of 
children and vulnerable persons within the Operating Schedule of the application. 
Where alcohol is to be sold, applicants should include details of the measures they 
propose to prevent its supply to children. It is expected that:-  

 staff will receive regular and adequate training on the law and practice relating to 
age restricted sales (including challenging purchasers, checking identification), such 
training to be properly documented and records made available for inspection. 

 registers of refused sales will be maintained and made available for inspection 

Page 163



Appendix F  

 

6 

 

 Applicants should indicate whether they are signatories to the Portman Group Code 
of Practice.  
 
Further additional examples of recommended management practice for the 
protection of children could include:  

 exclusion from the premises in certain circumstances;  

 the display of prominent warning notices about the supply of alcohol to minors.;  

 consideration of and / or refusal to stock high strength beers, lagers, ciders, etc.  
 
It is now mandatory for premises which sell or supply alcohol to have an age 
verification policy in place. The Council favours the Challenge 25 scheme and such a 
scheme volunteered as part of an operating schedule will be given the appropriate 
weight when the Council determines the licence application.  
 
Applicants needing advice on how to avoid age-restricted sales should contact 
Surrey Trading Standards Service (contact details at Annex 2) before preparing their 
operating schedules.  
 
There are certain restrictions in the Act relating to the presence of children on 
licensed premises. In the case of premises, which are used “exclusively or primarily” 
for the supply of alcohol for consumption on those premises, it is an offence to allow 
anyone under the age of 16 to be on such premises unless they are accompanied by 
an adult.  
 
Where the consumption of alcohol takes place but is not the exclusive or primary 
activity at a particular venue, those under 16 are not allowed on the premises 
between midnight and 05.00 unless an adult accompanies them.  
 
The licensing authority will not seek to further limit the access of children to any 
premises unless it receives representations to that effect based on concerns about 
physical, moral, or psychological harm to children. The following are examples of 
premises that will raise particular concern:-  

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the premises 
for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking  

 Where there is a known association with drug taking or dealing  

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises  

 Where “adult” entertainment is being proposed.  
 
Applicants seeking a licence that would enable them to provide alcohol as part of an 
alcohol delivery service should include in their operating schedule the procedures 
they intend to operate to ensure that:  

 the person they are selling alcohol to is over 18;  

 that alcohol is only delivered to a person over 18;  

 that a clear document trail of the order process from order to delivery is maintained 
(with times and signatures) and available for inspection by an authorised officer; 

  the time that alcohol is sold on the website / over the phone and the time; and 

  that the alcohol is delivered is within the hours stated on the licence for the sale of 
alcohol. 
 
25.8.3 REVIEWS IN CONNECTION WITH PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM 
HARM  
 
An application for review by the responsible authorities or any other person may be 
considered where:  

Page 164



Appendix F  

 

7 

 

 There have been underage sales or underage drinking taking place  

 Breaches of licence conditions in respect of protection of children have taken place 

 Complaints have been received that have been substantiated by investigating 
officer 
 
 
National Guidance 

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 
premises which should be treated particularly seriously.  
These are the use of the licensed premises:  
• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;  
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, 
which does considerable damage to the industries affected;  
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the 
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of 
young people;  
• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;  
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;  
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 94 | 
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;  
• for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 
immigration status in the UK; 
• for unlawful gambling; and  
• for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G 
 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 167



Appendix G 
 

2 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 168



Appendix G 
 

3 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 169



Appendix G 
 

4 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 170



Appendix G 
 

5 

 

 

 

Page 171



Appendix G 
 

6 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 172



Appendix G 
 

7 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 173



Appendix G 
 

8 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 174



Appendix G 
 

9 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 175



Appendix G 
 

10 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 176



Appendix G 
 

11 

 

 

 

Page 177



Appendix G 
 

12 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 178



Appendix G 
 

13 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To consider an application for review of the Premises Licence at Sunbury Food and Wine, 13 The Parade, Staines Road West, Sunbury-on-Thames TW16 7AB
	Sunbury Food and wine Final Report
	Appendix A - Location Plan
	Appendix B Premises Licence
	Appendix C Premises Plan
	Appendix D Review Application from Trading Standards
	Appendix D Statements from Trading Standards bundle
	Appendix E Redacted Surrey Police rep
	Appendix F - Spelthorne Policy
	Appendix G Extract from National Guidence on reviews




